2019 No. 5

FOOD

The Food (Miscellaneous Amendments and Revocations) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2019

Made - - - - 15th January 2019

Coming into operation - 11th February 2019

CONTENTS

Part 1 Introductory

3

Citation, commencement and interpretation

1.

	PART 2	
	Amendments to Food and Feed legislation	
2.	The Preserved Sardines (Marketing Standards) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 1990	3
3.	The Food (Lot Marking) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 1996	4
4.	The Bread and Flour Regulations (Northern Ireland) 1998	4
5.	The Medical Food Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2000	4
6.	The Coffee Extracts and Chicory Extracts Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2001	5
7.	The Specified Sugar Products Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2003	5
8.	The Cocoa and Chocolate Products Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2003	ϵ
9.	Processed Cereal-based Foods and Baby Foods for Infants and Young Children Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2003	ϵ
10.	The Food Supplements Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2003	6
11.	The General Food Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2004	7
12.	The Genetically Modified Food Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2004	7
13.	The Food Hygiene Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2006	7
14.	The Fishery Products (Official Charges) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2007	8
15.	The Addition of Vitamins, Minerals and Other Substances Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2007	8
16.	The Nutrition and Health Claims Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2007	8
17.	The Quick-frozen Foodstuffs (No. 2) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2007	ç
18.	The Drinking Milk Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2008	ç
19.	The Specified Products from China (Restriction on First Placing on the Market) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2008	ç

20.	The Spreadable Fats (Marketing Standards) and the Milk and Milk Products (Protection of Designations) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2008	9		
21.	The Official Feed and Food Controls Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2009	9		
22.	The Food Irradiation Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2009			
23.				
24.				
25.	The Materials and Articles in Contact with Food Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2012	10		
26.	The Contaminants in Food Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2013	10		
27.	The Food Additives, Flavourings, Enzymes and Extraction Solvents Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2013	11		
28.	The Fruit Juices and Fruit Nectars Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2013	11		
29.	The Food Information Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2014	12		
30.	The Products Containing Meat etc. Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2014	12		
31.	The Honey Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015	13		
32.	The Country of Origin of Certain Meats Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015	13		
33.	The Food Safety (Information and Compositional Requirements) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2016	13		
34.	The Caseins and Caseinates Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2016	13		
35.	The Animal Feed (Composition, Marketing and Use) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2016	14		
36.				
	PART 3			
	Revocations			
37.	Revocations	15		
	SCHEDULE 1 — SCHEDULE SUBSTITUTED FOR SCHEDULE 1 TO THE FOOD HYGIENE REGULATIONS (NORTHERN IRELAND)			
	2006	16		
	SCHEDULE 2 — SCHEDULE SUBSTITUTED FOR THE SCHEDULE TO THE FISHERY PRODUCTS (OFFICIAL CONTROLS CHARGES) REGULATIONS (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2007	19		
	SCHEDULE 3 — SCHEDULE SUBSTITUTED FOR SCHEDULE 1 TO	1)		
	OFFICIAL FEED AND FOOD CONTROLS REGULATIONS (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2009	21		
	SCHEDULE 4 — SCHEDULE SUBSTITUTED FOR SCHEDULE 3 TO THE FOOD IRRADIATION REGULATIONS (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2009	23		
	SCHEDULE 5 — SCHEDULE SUBSTITUTED FOR SCHEDULE 4 TO THE FOOD IRRADIATION REGULATIONS (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2009	25		
	SCHEDULE 6 — SCHEDULE SUBSTITUTED FOR SCHEDULE 1 TO MEAT (OFFICIAL FEED CONTROLS CHARGES) REGULATIONS (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2009	27		
	SCHEDULE 7 — Revocations	28		

The Department of Health(a) being a department designated for the purposes of section 2(2) of the European Communities Act 1972(b) in relation to measures relating to food (including drink) including the primary production of food(c) makes the following Regulations in exercise of the powers conferred by Article 15(1), 16(2) and 47(2) of the Food Safety (Northern Ireland) Order 1991(d) and section 2(2) of, and paragraph 1A of Schedule 2 to the European Communities Act 1972.

These Regulations make provision for a purpose mentioned in section 2(2) of the European Communities Act 1972 and it appears to the Department of Health that it is expedient for references to specified EU instruments or provisions of EU instruments in specified statutory rules to be construed as references to those EU instruments, or provisions of EU instruments as amended from time to time, as provided for in regulations 7(5)(b) and 24 of these Regulations.

In accordance with Article 47(3A) of the Food Safety (Northern Ireland) Order 1991, the Department of Health has had regard to relevant advice given by the Food Standards Agency.

There has been open and transparent public consultation during the preparation of these Regulations in accordance with the requirements of Article 9 of Regulation (EC) No. 178/2002 of the European Parliament and of the Council laying down the general principles and requirements of food law, establishing the European Food Safety Authority and laying down procedures in matters of food safety(e) as last amended by Regulation (EU) 2017/745 of the European Parliament and of the Council(f).

Part 1

Introductory

Citation, commencement and interpretation

- 1.—(1) These Regulations may be cited as the Food (Miscellaneous Amendments and Revocations) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2019 and come into operation on 11th February 2019
- (2) The Interpretation Act (Northern Ireland) 1954(g) shall apply to these Regulations as it applies to an Act of the Assembly.

PART 2

Amendments to Food and Feed legislation

The Preserved Sardines (Marketing Standards) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 1990

2.—(1) The Preserved Sardines (Marketing Standards) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 1990(**h**) are amended in accordance with paragraphs (2) and (3).

- $\textbf{(a)} \quad \text{Formerly the Department of Health, Social Services and Public Safety; see 2016 c.5 (N.I.), section 1 \\$
- **(b)** 1972 c.68
- (c) S.I. 2003/2901
- (d) S.I. 1991/762 (N.I.7) as amended by S.I. 1996/1663 (N.I. 12), paragraphs 26 to 42 of Schedule 5 and Schedule 6 to the Food Standards Act 1999 c.28 and S.R. 2004 Nos 482 and 505
- (e) OJ No. L 31, 1.2.2002, p. 1
- (**f**) OJ L 117, 5.5.2017, p. 1
- (g) 1954 c.33 (NI)
- (h) S.R. 1990 No. 194, to which there are amendments not relevant to these Regulations

- (2) In regulation 2(1), in the definition of "the Council Regulation", at the end insert "and trade descriptions for preserved sardines and sardine-type products, as last amended by Commission Regulation (EC) No 1345/2008(a)".
 - (3) In the Schedule, after item 7 in the table insert—

"8. Article 7a	Requirements relating to the marketing of	
	preserved sardine-type products"	

The Food (Lot Marking) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 1996

- **3.**—(1) The Food (Lot Marking) Regulations (Northern Ireland)1996(**b**) are amended in accordance with paragraphs (2) and (3).
- (2) In regulation 2 (Interpretation), in the definition of "Regulation (EU) No 1169/2011" after "No 608/2004" insert "as last amended by Regulation (EU) 2015/2283 of the European Parliament and of the Council"(c).
 - (3) In regulation 4 (Exceptions for particular types of sale and sales units) omit paragraph (f).

The Bread and Flour Regulations (Northern Ireland) 1998

- **4.** In regulation 2 of the Bread and Flour Regulations (Northern Ireland) 1998(**d**) (Interpretation)—
 - (a) omit the definition of "flour treatment agent" and "flour additive";
 - (b) insert the definition of "food additive" in the correct alphabetical place:

""food additive" has the meaning assigned to it by Article 3(2)(a) of Regulation (EC) No 1333/2008 of the European Parliament and of the Council on food additives as last amended by Commission Regulation (EU) 2018/1497"(e); and

(c) in the definition of "Regulation (EU) No 1169/2011" after "No 608/2004" insert "as last amended by Regulation (EU) 2015/2283 of the European Parliament and of the Council."

The Medical Food Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2000

- **5.**—(1) The Medical Food Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2000(**f**) are amended in accordance with paragraphs (2) and (3).
 - (2) In regulation 2 (Interpretation) in the definition of "the Directive"—
 - (a) after "Romania;" omit "and"; and
 - (b) after Directive 1991/21/EC insert

"; and

Commission Directive No. 2013/26/EU adapting certain directives in the field of food safety, veterinary and phytosanitary policy, by reason of the accession of Croatia, as amended by Regulation (EU) No 609/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council on food intended for infants and young children, food for special medical purposes, and total diet replacement for weight control and repealing Council Directive 92/52/EEC, Commission Directives 96/8/EC, 1999/21/EC, 2006/125/EC and 2006/141/EC, Directive 2009/39/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council and Commission Regulations

⁽a) OJ No. L 348, 24.12.2008, p 76

⁽b) S.R. 1996 No. 384, as last amended by S.R. 2014 No. 223

⁽c) OJ L 327, 11.12.2015, p. 1

⁽d) S.R. 1998 No. 24, as last amended by S.R. 2014 No. 223

⁽e) OJ No. L 354, 31.12.2008, p. 16, as last amended by Regulation (EU) 2018/1497 (OJ No. L 253, 9.10.2018, p. 36)

⁽f) S.R. 2000 No. 187, as last amended by S.R. 2008 No. 405

- (EC) No 41/2009 and (EC) No 953/2009; and, Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2016/128 supplementing Regulation (EU) No 609/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council as regards the specific compositional and information requirements for food for special medical purposes."(a).
- (3) Omit regulation 8 (Transitional arrangements).

The Coffee Extracts and Chicory Extracts Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2001

- **6.**—(1) The Coffee Extracts and Chicory Extracts Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2001(**b**) are amended in accordance with paragraphs (2) to (4).
- (2) In regulation 2 (Interpretation) in the definition of "Regulation (EU) No 1169/2011" after "No 608/2004" insert "as last amended by Regulation (EU) 2015/2283 of the European Parliament and of the Council.".
- (3) In regulation 7(3) (Penalties and enforcement) from "paragraphs 1 and 2" to "human consumption" substitute "Annex 3 to Regulation (EC) No 882/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council on official controls performed to ensure the verification of compliance with feed and food law, animal health and animal welfare rules as last amended by Commission Regulation (EU) 2018/445."(c).
 - (4) Omit regulation 8 (Transitional provisions).

The Specified Sugar Products Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2003

- 7.—(1) The Specified Sugar Products Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2003(**d**) are amended in accordance with paragraphs (2) to (6).
 - (2) In regulation 2 (Interpretation) omit the definitions of "EEA Agreement" and "EEA State".
- (3) In regulation 5(1) (Labelling and description of designated products) after "consumers" insert "as last amended by Regulation (EU) 2015/2283 of the European Parliament and of the Council.".
 - (4) Omit regulation 11 (Transitional Provisions).
 - (5) In Schedule 1 (Specified sugar products and their reserved descriptions),
 - (a) in the table—
 - (i) in entry 5, in column 2, in sub-paragraph (c), for "paragraph 4" substitute "paragraph 3":
 - (ii) in entry 11, in column 1 for "1. Fructose" substitute "11. Fructose"
 - (iii) in entry 11, in column 2, for "paragraph (2)" substitute "paragraph 3";
 - (b) in note 7
 - (i) for "Directive 2009/32/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council on the approximation of laws of the Member states on extraction solvents used in the production of foodstuffs and food ingredients (Recast)" substitute "Directive 2009/32/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council on the approximation of the laws of the Member States on extraction solvents used in the production of foodstuffs and food ingredients (Recast)(e), as last amended by Commission Directive (EU) 2016/1855(f), except for Annex I which is to be construed as amended from time to time":

⁽a) OJ No. L 158, 10.6.2013, p. 376, as amended by Regulation (EU) No 609/2013 (OJ L 181, 29.6.2013, p. 35) and Regulation (EU) 2016/128 (OJ L 25, 2.2.2016, p. 30)

⁽b) S.R. 2001 No. 45, to which there are amendments not relevant to these Regulations

⁽c) OJ No. L 165, 30.4.2004, p. 1, as last amended by Commission Regulation (EU) 2018/455, (OJ No L 77, 20.3.2018, p. 4)

⁽d) S.R. 2003 No. 301, to which there are amendments not relevant to these Regulations

⁽e) OJ No. L 141, 6.6.2009, p. 3

⁽f) OJ No. L 284, 20.10.2016, p. 19

- (ii) for "Regulation (EC) No. 1333/2008 of the European Parliament and of the Council on food additives" substitute "Regulation (EC) No. 1333/2008 of the European Parliament and of the Council on food additives the Annexes to which are amended from time to time.(a)".
- (6) In Schedule 2, paragraph 2 (Method of Analysis) for "the Commission Regulations (EEC) No. 1265/69" substitute "Regulation (EEC) No. 1265/69 as last amended by Commission Regulation (EC) No 187/1999."(b).

The Cocoa and Chocolate Products Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2003

- 8.—(1) The Cocoa and Chocolate Products Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2003(c) are amended in accordance with paragraphs (2) to (4).
 - (2) In regulation 2(1) (Interpretation)
 - (a) omit the definitions of "EEA Agreement" and "EEA State";
 - (b) in the definition of "Regulation (EU) No 1169/2011" after "No 608/2004" insert "as last amended by Regulation (EU) 2015/2283 of the European Parliament and of the Council.".
- (3) In regulation 7(2)(a) (Manner for marking or labelling) for "the 1996 Regulations" substitute "Article 9(1)(b) of Regulation (EU) No 1169/2011."(**d**).
 - (4) Omit regulation 12 (Transitional provisions).

Processed Cereal-based Foods and Baby Foods for Infants and Young Children Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2003

9. In regulation 2(1) (Interpretation) of the Processed Cereal Based foods and Baby foods for infants and Young Children Regulations (NI) 2003(e) omit the definitions of "EEA Agreement" and "EEA State".

The Food Supplements Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2003

- 10. In regulation 2(1) (Interpretation) of the Food Supplements Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2003(**f**) in the definition of —
 - (a) "Directive 2001/83" for "Directive 2009/53/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council amending Directive 2001/82/EC and Directive 2001/83/EC, as regards variations to the terms of marketing authorisations for medicinal products;" substitute "Regulation (EU) 2017/745 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 5 April 2017 on medical devices, amending Directive 2001/83/EC, Regulation (EC) No 178/2002 and Regulation (EC) No 1223/2009 and repealing Council Directives 90/385/EEC and 93/42/EEC;"(g);
 - (b) "Directive 2002/46" substitute ""Directive 2002/46" means, subject to regulation 2(4), Directive 2002/46/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council on the approximation of the laws of the Member States relating to food supplements as last amended by Commission Regulation (EU) 2017/1203"(h); and
 - (c) "Regulation (EU) 1169/2011" after "No. 608/2004" insert "as last amended by Regulation (EU) 2015/2283 of the European Parliament and of the Council".

⁽a) OJ No. L 354, 31.12.2008, p 16, as last amended by Commission Regulation (EU) 2018/682 (OJ No L 116, 7.5.2018, p. 5)

⁽b) OJ No. L 21, 28.1.1999, p. 9

⁽c) S.R. 2003 No. 313, as amended by S.R. 2014 No. 223

⁽d) OJ No. L 304, 22.11.2011, p 18

⁽e) S.R. 2003 No. 530, as last amended by S.R. 2005 No. 574(f) S.R. 2003 No. 273, as last amended by S.R. 2014 No. 223

⁽g) OJ No. L 117, 5.5.2017, p. 1

⁽h) OJ No. L 173, 6.7.2017, p. 9

The General Food Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2004

11. In regulation 2(1) (Interpretation) of the General Food Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2004(a) for the definition of "Regulation (EC) 178/2002" substitute:

""Regulation (EC) 178/2002" means Regulation (EC) No 178/2002 of the European Parliament and of the Council laying down the general principles and requirements of food law, establishing the European Food Safety Authority and laying down procedures in matters of food safety, as last amended by Regulation (EU) 2017/745 of the European Parliament and of the Council."(b).

The Genetically Modified Food Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2004

- **12.**—(1) The Genetically Modified Food Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2004(**c**) are amended in accordance with paragraphs (2) and (3).
 - (2) In regulation 2(1) (Interpretation) for the definition of "Regulation 1829/2003" substitute—
 - ""Regulation 1829/2003" means Regulation 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council on genetically modified food and feed(**d**); as last amended by Regulation (EC) 298/2008 of the European Parliament and of the Council."(**e**).
 - (3) Omit regulation 9 (Consequential amendments).

The Food Hygiene Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2006

- 13.—(1) The Food Hygiene Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2006(f) are amended in accordance with paragraphs (2) to (5).
 - (2) In regulation 2(1) omit ""Regulation 596/2009"," and ""Regulation 1079/2013"".
 - (3) Omit regulation 30 (Consequential amendments).
 - (4) Substitute Schedule 1 (Definitions of EU legislation) with Schedule 1 to these Regulations.
 - (5) In Schedule 4 (Temperature control requirements)
 - (a) in paragraph 3—
 - (i) in sub-paragraph (f), for "Council Regulation 1906/90 applies", substitute "Commission Regulation 543/2008 and Regulation 1308/2013 apply";
 - (ii) in sub-paragraph (g), for "Council Regulation 1907/90 applies", substitute "Commission Regulation 589/2008 and Regulation 1308/2013 apply";
 - (b) in paragraph 8 for the definitions of "Regulation 1906/90" and "Regulation 1907/90" substitute—

""Commission Regulation 543/2008" means Commission Regulation (EC) No 543/2008 laying down detailed rules for the application of Council Regulation (EC) No 1234/2007 as regards the marketing standards for poultrymeat(g);

"Commission Regulation 589/2008" means Commission Regulation (EC) No 589/2008 laying down detailed rules for implementing Council Regulation (EC) No 1234/2007 as regards marketing standards for eggs(\mathbf{h});

⁽a) S.R. 2004 No. 505

⁽b) OJ No. L 117, 5.5.2017, p. 1

⁽c) S.R. 2004 No. 385

⁽d) OJ L 268, 18.10.2003, p. 1

⁽e) OJ L 97, 9.4.2008, p. 64

⁽f) S.R. 2006 No. 3 as last amended by S.R. 2018 No. 77

⁽g) OJ L 157, 17.6.2008, p. 46 as last amended by Regulation (EU) No. 1308/2013 (OJ L 347, 20.12.2013, p. 67)

⁽h) OJ L 163, 24.6.2008, p. 6 as last amended by Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2017/2168 (OJ L 306, 22.11.2017, p. 6)

"Regulation 1308/2013" means Regulation (EU) No 1308/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council establishing a common organisation of the markets in agricultural products and repealing Council Regulations (EEC) No 922/72, (EEC) No 234/79, (EC) No 1037/2001 and (EC) No 1234/2007)(a);".

(6) Omit Schedule 7 (Consequential amendments).

The Fishery Products (Official Charges) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2007

- **14.**—(1) The Fishery Products (Official Charges) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2007(**b**) are amended in accordance with paragraphs (2) to (3).
 - (2) In regulation 2(1) (Interpretation)
 - (a) for the definition commencing "Directive 2004/41" to "Schedule" substitute-

""Directive 2004/41", "Regulation 2406/96", "Regulation 178/2002" "Regulation 852/2004", "Regulation 853/2004", "Regulation 854/2004", "Regulation 882/2004", "Regulation 1688/2005", "Regulation 2073/2005", "Regulation 2074/2005" and "Regulation 2015/1375" have the meanings respectively given to them in the Schedule;" and

- (b) in the definition of "third country import" for "a charge is payable under regulation 54 of the Products of Animal Origin (Third Country Imports) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2007" substitute "third country import means an import in respect of which a charge is payable under Part 3 of the Trade in Animals and Related Products Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2011."
- (3) For the Schedule (Definitions of community legislation) substitute Schedule 2 to these regulations.

The Addition of Vitamins, Minerals and Other Substances Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2007

15. In regulation 2(1) of the Addition of Vitamins, Minerals and Other Substances Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2007(c) (Interpretation) for the definition of "the EC Regulation" substitute

""the EC Regulation" means Regulation (EC) No. 1925/2006 of the European Parliament and of the Council on the addition of vitamins and minerals and of certain other substances to foods(**d**), as last amended by Commission Regulation (EU) 2017/1203(**e**), except for Annex I or II to Regulation (EC) No. 1925/2006 which shall be construed as amended from time to time."

The Nutrition and Health Claims Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2007

16. In regulation 2(1) of the Nutrition and Health Claims Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2007(**f**) (Interpretation) for the definition of "the Regulation" substitute -

""the Regulation" means Regulation (EC) No. 1924/2006 of the European Parliament and of the Council on nutrition and health claims made on foods, as last amended by Commission Regulation (EU) No. 1047/2012(g), except for the Annex to Regulation (EC) No.1924/2006 which shall be construed as amended from time to time."

⁽a) OJ L 347, 20.12.2013, p. 671 as last amended by Regulation (EU) 2017/2393 (OJ L 350, 29.12.2017, p. 15)

⁽**b**) S.R. 2007 No. 497

⁽c) S.R. 2007 No. 301

⁽d) OJ No. L 404, 30.12.2006, p. 26

⁽e) OJ L 173, 6.7.2017, p. 9

⁽f) S.R. 2007 No. 349 as last amended by S.R. 2014 No. 223

 $^{(\}mathbf{g}) \quad \text{OJ L } 310,\, 9.11.2012,\, p.\,\, 36$

The Quick-frozen Foodstuffs (No. 2) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2007

17. In regulation 2(1) (Interpretation) of the Quick-frozen Foodstuffs (No.2) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2007(a)in the definition of "Directive 89/108" after "consumption" insert "as last amended by Council Directive 2013/20 EU;"(b).

The Drinking Milk Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2008

18. In regulation 2 (Interpretation) of the Drinking Milk Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2008(c) in the definition of "the Council Regulation" after "(Single CMO Regulation)" insert "as last amended by Council Regulation (EU) No 517/2013(d) and subject to repeal, savings and transitional arrangements given effect by Regulation (EU) No 1308/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council;(e)".

The Specified Products from China (Restriction on First Placing on the Market) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2008

- 19.—(1) The Specified Products from China (Restriction on First Placing on the Market) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2008(f) are amended in accordance with paragraphs (2) and (3).
- (2) In regulation 2(1) (Interpretation) for the definition of "Regulation 178/2002" substitute ""Regulation 178/2002" means Regulation (EC) No 178/2002 of the European Parliament and of the Council laying down the general principles and requirements of food law, establishing the European Food Safety Authority and laying down procedures in matters of food safety, as last amended by Regulation (EU) 2017/745 of the European Parliament and of the Council."(g).
 - (3) Omit regulation 8 (Transitional provisions).

The Spreadable Fats (Marketing Standards) and the Milk and Milk Products (Protection of **Designations) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2008**

20. In regulation 2(1) (Interpretation) of the Spreadable Fats (Marketing Standards) and the Milk and Milk Products (Protection of Designations) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2008(h), in the definition of "the Council Regulation" after "(Single CMO Regulation)" insert "as last amended by Council Regulation (EU) No 517/2013(i) and subject to repeal, savings and transitional arrangements given effect by Regulation (EU) No 1308/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council(j)".

The Official Feed and Food Controls Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2009

- 21.—(1) The Official Feed and Food Controls Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2009(k) are amended in accordance with paragraphs (2) to (4).
 - (2) In regulation 2(1) (Interpretation), omit "and "Regulation 702/2013"".
 - (3) For Schedule 1 (Definitions of legislation) substitute Schedule 3 to these regulations.
 - (4) In Schedule 3 (Definition of relevant food law) for sub-paragraph (a)(vi) substitute—
 - "(vi) the regulation of beef and veal labelling under the Beef and Veal Labelling Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2010(a),".

⁽a) S.R. 2007 No. 110 as last amended by S.R. 2014 No. 223

⁽b) OJ No. L 158, 10.6.2013, p. 234

⁽c) S.R. 2008 No. 237, as last amended by S.R. 2014 No. 223 (d) OJ L 141, 5.6.2015, p. 19

⁽e) OJ No. L 158, 10.6.2013, p 1

⁽f) S.R. 2008 No. 171, as last amended by S.R. 2013 No. 180

⁽g) OJ No. L117, 5.5.2017, p.1

⁽h) S.R. 2008 No. 239, as amended by S.R. 2014 No. 92

⁽i) OJ L 158, 10.6.2013, p. 1

⁽**j**) OJ L 347, 20.12.2013, p. 671

⁽k) S.R. 2009 No. 427, as last amended by S.R. 2018 No. 16

The Food Irradiation Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2009

- 22.—(1) The Food Irradiation Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2009(b) are amended in accordance with paragraphs (2) and (3).
- (2) For Schedule 3 (List of approved facilities in Member states) substitute Schedule 4 to these regulations.
- (3) For Schedule 4 (List of facilities in countries outside the European Community) substitute Schedule 5 to these regulations.

The Meat (Official Controls Charges) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2009

- 23.—(1) The Meat (Official Controls Charges) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2009(c) are amended in accordance with paragraphs (2) and (3).
- (2) In regulation 2(1) (Interpretation) in the definition beginning "Directive 2004/41" for ""Regulation 2075//2005" and "Regulation 2076/2005"" substitute "and "Regulation 2015/1375"".
 - (3) For Schedule 1 (Definitions of EU legislation) substitute Schedule 6 to these regulations.

The Plastic Kitchenware (Conditions on Imports from China) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2011

24. For regulation 8(2)(d)(ii) of the Plastic Kitchenware (Conditions on Imports from China) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2011(d) (Notices and actions in the case of non-compliance), substitute "(ii) does not meet the requirements of Commission Regulation (EU) No. 10/2011 on plastic materials and articles intended to come into contact with food(e), as last amended by Commission Regulation (EU) 2018/831(f), except for Annex 1 to Commission Regulation (EU) No. 10/2011 which shall be construed as amended from time to time.".

The Materials and Articles in Contact with Food Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2012

- 25.—(1) The Materials and Articles in Contact with Food Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2012(g) are amended in accordance with paragraph (2).
 - (2) In regulation 2 (Interpretation)—
 - (a) in paragraph (1)—
 - (i) in the definition of "Regulation 2023/2006" omit "as last amended by Commission Regulation (EC) No 282/2008";
 - (ii) in the definition of "Regulation 10/2011" after the word "means" insert ", subject to paragraph 3,".

The Contaminants in Food Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2013

- 26.—(1) The Contaminants in Food Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2013(h) are amended in accordance with paragraphs (2) to (6).
 - (2) In regulation 2 (Interpretation)-
 - (a) in paragraph (1) omit the definitions of "Directive 76/621", "Directive 80/891", "Regulation 629/2008" and "Regulation 165/2010";

⁽a) S.R. 2010 No. 155, to which there are amendments not relevant to these Regulations

⁽**b**) S.R. 2009 No. 258

⁽c) S.R. 2009 No. 247

⁽d) S.R. 2011 No. 236

⁽e) OJ No. L 12, 15.1.2011, p. 1 (f) OJ L 140, 6.6.2018, p. 35

⁽g) S.R. 2012 No. 384

⁽h) S.R. 2013 No. 229

- (b) in paragraph (2)—
- (i) omit "Directive 76/621, Directive 80/891,";
- (ii) omit "the Directive or";
- (c) in paragraph (4) omit "Directive 76/621, Directive 80/891,".
- (3) Omit regulations 3 (Scope) and 4 (Controls on erucic acid).
- (4) In regulation 5 (Controls on contaminants in food)
 - (a) for paragraph (1) substitute—
 - "(1) A person who contravenes or fails to comply with any of the EU provisions specified in paragraph (2) is guilty of an offence."
 - (b) after paragraph (2) insert—
 - "(3) The level of erucic acid in a food must be determined according to sampling methods, and methods of analysis that meet the performance criteria, set out in the Annex to Commission Regulation (EU) 2015/705 laying down methods of sampling and performance criteria for the methods of analysis for the official control of the levels of erucic acid in foodstuffs and repealing Commission Directive 80/891/EEC(a)."
- (5) In regulation 6 (Penalties), omit "regulation 4(3) or".
- (6) In regulation 8 (Application of various Articles of the Food Safety (Northern Ireland) Order 1991)—
 - (a) in paragraph (1)(c)(i), omit "4(3) or";
 - (b) in paragraph (2), in the application and modification of Article 8(1) of the Food Safety (Northern Ireland) Order 1991, omit "4(1) or".

The Food Additives, Flavourings, Enzymes and Extraction Solvents Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2013

- **27.**—(1) The Food Additives, Flavourings, Enzymes and Extraction Solvents Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2013(**b**) are amended in accordance with paragraph (2).
 - (2) In regulation 2(1) (Interpretation) in the definition of "Regulation 1333/2008"—
 - (a) in paragraph (a) after "additives" insert "as last amended by Commission Regulation 1152/2013;"(c); and
 - (b) in paragraph (c) after "Council" insert "as last amended by Commission Regulation 2018/1481"(d).

The Fruit Juices and Fruit Nectars Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2013

- **28.**—(1) The Fruit Juices and Fruit Nectars Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2013(e) are amended in accordance with paragraphs (2) to (4).
 - (2) Omit regulation 22 (Transitional provisions).
 - (3) In Schedule 7 (Specification for fruit nectar)—
 - (a) in paragraph 1, for "juice" substitute "product";
 - (b) in paragraph 2, for "juices" substitute "products".
 - (4) In Schedule 9 (Authorised additional substances), after paragraph 9 insert—
 - "10. Plant proteins for clarification from—

⁽a) OJ No. L 113, 1.5.2015, p 29

⁽b) S.R. 2013 No. 220

⁽c) OJ L 311, 20.11.2013, p. 1

⁽d) OJ L 251, 5.10.2018, p. 13

⁽e) S.R. 2013 No. 253, to which there are amendments not relevant to these Regulations

- (a) wheat,
- (b) peas,
- (c) potatoes, or
- (d) any combination of them.".

The Food Information Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2014

- **29.**—(1) The Food Information Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2014(**a**) are amended in accordance with paragraphs (2) to (5).
 - (2) In regulation 2(1) (Interpretation)
 - (a) in the definition of "Directive 1999/2/EC" after "radiation" insert "as last amended by Regulation (EC) No 1137/2008 of the European Parliament and of the Council" (b);
 - (b) for the definition of "FIC" substitute ""FIC" means, subject to regulation 2(3) and Schedule 1, Regulation (EU) No 1169/2011 of the European Parliament and of the Council on the provision of food information to consumers, amending Regulations (EC) No 1924/2006 and (EC) No 1925/2006 of the European Parliament and of the Council, and repealing Commission Directive 87/250/EEC, Council Directive 90/496/EEC, Commission Directive 1999/10/EC, Directive 2000/13/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council, Commission Directives 2002/67/EC and 2008/5/EC and Commission Regulation (EC) No 608/2004 as last amended by Regulation (EU) 2015/2283 of the European Parliament and of the Council(c)";
 - (c) in both the definition of "final consumer" and "food business operator" after "food safety" insert "as last amended by Regulation (EU) 2017/745 of the European Parliament and of the Council" (d);
 - (d) for the definition of "Regulation 828/2014" substitute ""Regulation 828/2014" means, subject to regulation 2(3) and Schedule 1, Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) No. 828/2014 on the requirements for the provision of information to consumers on the absence or reduced presence of gluten in food."
- (3) In regulation 7(7) (Foods that are not prepacked etc. containing meat and other ingredients), in the definition of "mechanically separated meat" after "animal origin" insert "as last amended by Commission Regulation (EU) 2017/1981"(e).
- (4) In Schedule 3 (Foods to which regulation 7 does not apply) in paragraph 3 after "poultrymeat" insert, "as last amended by Commission Regulation (EU) No 519/2013"(f).
 - (5) In Schedule 5 (Improvement notices specified provisions) part 2—
 - (a) in paragraph 26 after "honey" insert "as last amended by Directive 2014/63/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council"(g); and
 - (b) in paragraph 37 after "consumption" insert "as last amended by Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) No 1040/2014(h)".

The Products Containing Meat etc. Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2014

30.—(1) The Products Containing Meat etc. Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2014(i) are amended in accordance with paragraphs (2) and (3).

⁽a) S.R. 2014 No. 223

⁽b) OJ No. L 311, 21.11.2008, p. 1

⁽c) OJ No. L 327, 11.12.2015, p. 1

⁽**d**) OJ No. L 117, 5.5.2017, p. 1

⁽e) OJ No. L 285, 1.11.2017, p. 10

⁽**f**) OJ No. L 158, 10.6.2013, p. 74

⁽g) OJ No. L 164, 3.6.2014, p. 1

⁽h) OJ No. L 288, 2.10.2014, p. 1

⁽i) S.R. 2014 No. 285

- (2) In regulation 2 (Interpretation)—
 - (a) in the definition of "FIC" after "No.608/2004", insert "as last amended by Regulation (EU) 2015/2283 of the European Parliament and of the Council"; and
 - (b) in the definition of "regulated product" sub-paragraph (b) "mechanically separated meat" after "Council" insert "as last amended by Commission Regulation (EU) 2017/1981".
- (3) In Schedule 1 (Reserved Descriptions), in the definition of "curing salt", subparagraph (c) after "food additives" insert "as last amended by Commission Regulation (EU) 2018/1497"(a).

The Honey Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015

- 31.—(1) The Honey Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015(b) are amended in accordance with paragraph (2).
 - (2) In regulation 3 (General interpretation)—
 - (a) in the definition of "FIC" after "No. 608/2004", insert "as last amended by Regulation (EU) 2015/2283 of the European Parliament and of the Council"; and
 - (b) in the definition of "the Honey Directive" after "relating to honey" insert "as last amended by Directive 2014/63/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council"(c).

The Country of Origin of Certain Meats Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015

32. In regulation 2(1) of the Country of Origin of Certain Meats Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015(d) (Interpretation) omit the definitions of "batch", "batch code", "mass caterer" and "trimmings.".

The Food Safety (Information and Compositional Requirements) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2016

33. In regulation 2(1) of the Food Safety (Information and Compositional Requirements) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2016(e) (Interpretation) for the definition of "the EU Regulation" substitute ""the EU Regulation" means, subject to regulation to 2(2), Regulation (EU) No 609/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council, on food intended for infants and young children, food for special medical purposes, and total diet replacement for weight control(f) and repealing Council Directive 92/52/EEC, Commission Directives 96/8/EC, 1999/21/EC, 2006/125/EC and 2006/141/EC, Directive 2009/39/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council and Commission Regulations (EC) No 41/2009 and (EC) No 953/2009 as last amended by Commission Delegated Regulation 2017/1091;(g)".

The Caseins and Caseinates Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2016

- 34. In regulation 2 of the Caseins and Caseinates Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2016(h) (Interpretation)—
 - (a) in the definition of "FIC" after "No. 608/2004", insert "as last amended by Regulation (EU) 2015/2283 of the European Parliament and of the Council"; and

⁽a) OJ L 253, 9.10.2018, p. 36

⁽b) S.R. 2015 No. 261

⁽c) OJ No. L 164, 3.6.2014, p. 1

⁽d) S.R. 2015 No. 321

⁽e) S.R. 2016 No. 251 (f) OJ L 181, 29.6.2013, p. 35

⁽g) OJ No. L158, 21.6.2017, p. 5

⁽h) S.R. 2016 No. 415

(b) in the definition of "Regulation (EC) No 1332/2008" after 'Regulation (EC) No 258/97' insert "as last amended by Commission Regulation (EU) No 1056/2012(a)".

The Animal Feed (Composition, Marketing and Use) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2016

- **35.**—(1) The Animal Feed (Composition, Marketing and Use) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2016(**b**) are amended in accordance with paragraphs (2) and (3).
- (2) In regulation 2(1) (Interpretation) for the definitions of "Directive 82/475", "Directive 2002/32", "Regulation 178/2002" "Regulation 1829/2003", "Regulation 1831/2003", "Directive 2008/38" and "Regulation 767/2009", substitute:

""Directive 82/475" means, subject to regulation 2(3), Commission Directive 82/475/EEC laying down the categories of feed materials which may be used for the purposes of labelling compound feeding stuffs for pet animals as last amended by Commission Directive 98/67/EEC;(c)

"Directive 2002/32" means, subject to regulation 2(3), Directive 2002/32 of the European Parliament of the Council on undesirable substances in animal feed as last amended by Commission Regulation (EU) 2017/2229;(d)

"Regulation 178/2002" means Regulation (EC) No. 178/2002 of the European Parliament and of the Council laying down the general principles and requirements of food law, establishing the European Food Safety Authority and laying down procedures in matters of food safety, as last amended by Regulation (EU) 2017/745 of the European Parliament and of the Council;(e)

"Regulation 1829/2003" means Regulation (EC) No. 1829/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council on genetically modified food and feed as last amended by Regulation (EC) No. 298/2008;(f)

"Regulation 1831/2003" means, subject to regulation 3(1), Regulation (EC) No 1831/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council on additives for use in animal nutrition as last amended by Commission Regulation (EU) No. 2015/2294;(g)

"Directive 2008/38" means, subject to regulation 2(3), Commission Directive 2008/38/EC establishing a list of intended uses of animal feedingstuffs for particular nutritional purposes as last amended by Commission Regulation (EU) No 1123/2014;(h)

"Regulation 767/2009" means, subject to regulation 2(3), Regulation (EC) No 767/2009 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 13 July 2009 on the placing on the market and use of feed, amending European Parliament and Council Regulation (EC) No 1831/2003 and repealing Council Directive 79/373/EEC, Commission Directive 80/511/EEC, Council Directives 82/471/EEC, 83/228/EEC, 93/74/EEC, 93/113/EC and 96/25/EC and Commission Decision 2004/217/EC as last amended by Commission Regulation (EU) 2017/2279;(i)".

(3) In regulation 12(1) (Offence of failing to comply with any specified provision of Regulation 767/200) for "Subject to the transitional provisions contained in Article 32, a" substitute "A".

⁽a) OJ No. L 313, 13.11.2012, p. 9

⁽b) S.R. 2016 No. 4

⁽c) OJ L 213, 21.7.1982, p. 27, as last amended by OJ L 261, 24.9.1998, p. 10

⁽d) OJ L 140, 30.5.2002, p. 10, as last amended by OJ L 319, 5.12.2017, p. 6

⁽e) OJ L 31, 1.2.2002, p. 1, as last amended by OJ L 117, 5.5.2017, p. 1

⁽f) OJ L 268, 18.10.2003, p. 1, as last amended by OJ L 97, 9.4.2008, p. 64

⁽g) OJ L 268, 18.10.2003, p. 29, as last amended by OJ L 324, 10.12.2015, p. 3

⁽h) OJ L 62, 6.3.2008, p. 9, as last amended by OJ L 304, 23.10.2014, p. 81

⁽i) OJ L 229, 1.9.2009, p. 1, as last amended by OJ L 328, 12.12.2017, p. 3

The Animal Feed (Hygiene, Sampling etc. and Enforcement) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2016

- **36.**—(1) The Animal Feed (Hygiene, Sampling etc. and Enforcement) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2016(a) are amended in accordance with paragraphs (2) and (3).
- (2) In regulation 2(1) (Interpretation) for the definitions of "Regulation 882/2004", "Regulation 183/2005", "Regulation 152/2009" and "Regulation 767/2009" substitute:
 - ""Regulation 882/2004" means Regulation (EC) No. 882/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council on official controls performed to ensure the verification of compliance with feed and food law, animal health and animal welfare rules as last amended by Commission Regulation (EU) 2018/445;(b)
 - "Regulation 183/2005" means subject to regulation 2(5) Regulation (EC) No. 183/2005 of the European Parliament and of the Council laying down requirements for feed hygiene as last amended by Commission Regulation (EU) 2015/1905;(c)
 - "Regulation 152/2009" means subject to regulation 2(5) Regulation (EC) No. 152/2009 laying down the methods of sampling and analysis for the official control of feed as last amended by Commission Regulation (EU) 2017/771;(d)
 - "Regulation 767/2009" means Regulation (EC) 767/2009 of the European Parliament and of the Council on the placing on the market and use of feed, amending European Parliament and Council Regulation (EC) No 1831/2003 and repealing Council Directive 79/373/EEC, Commission Directive 80/511/EEC, Council Directives 82/471/EEC, 83/228/EEC, 93/74/EEC, 93/113/EC and 96/25/EC and Commission Decision 2004/217/EC as last amended by Commission Regulation (EU) 2017/2279;(e)" and
 - (3) In regulation 4(2)(a) (Competent authorities) for "2(e)" substitute "2(f)".

PART 3

Revocations

Revocations

37. The Regulations listed in the table in Schedule 7 are revoked.

Sealed with the official seal of the Department of Health on 15th January 2019.



Elizabeth Redmond A senior officer of the Department of Health

⁽a) S.R. 2016 No. 5

⁽b) OJ L 165, 30.4.2004, p. 1, as last amended by OJ L 77, 20.3.2018, p. 4

⁽c) OJ L 35, 8.2.2005, p. 1, as last amended by OJ L 278, 23.10.2015, p. 5

⁽d) OJ L 54, 26.2.2009, p. 1, as last amended by OJ L 115, 4.5.2017, p. 22

⁽e) OJ L 229, 1.9.2009, p. 1, as last amended by OJ L 328, 12.12.2017, p. 3

SCHEDULE SUBSTITUTED FOR SCHEDULE 1 TO THE FOOD HYGIENE REGULATIONS (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2006

"SCHEDULE 1

Regulation 2(1)

DEFINITIONS OF COMMUNITY LEGISLATION

"Decision 2006/766" means Commission Decision 2006/766/EC establishing the lists of third countries and territories from which imports of bivalve molluscs, echinoderms, tunicates, marine gastropods and fishery products are permitted(a);

"Directive 2004/41" means Directive 2004/41/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council repealing certain directives concerning food hygiene and health conditions for the production and placing on the market of certain products of animal origin intended for human consumption and amending Council Directives 89/662/EEC and 92/118/EEC and Council Decision 95/408/EC(b);

"Regulation 178/2002" means Regulation (EC) No. 178/2002 of the European Parliament and of the Council laying down the general principles and requirements of food law, establishing the European Food Safety Authority and laying down procedures in matters of food safety(c);

"Regulation 852/2004" means Regulation (EC) No. 852/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council on the hygiene of foodstuffs(\mathbf{d}) as last amended by Regulation 219/2009(\mathbf{e}), as read with Regulation 2073/2005 and with Commission Regulation (EU) No 210/2013 on the approval of establishments producing sprouts pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 852/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council(\mathbf{f}) and with Commission Regulation (EU) No 2017/2158 establishing mitigation measures and benchmark levels for the reduction of the presence of acrylamide in food(\mathbf{g});

"Regulation 853/2004" means Regulation (EC) No. 853/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council laying down specific hygiene rules for food of animal origin(h);

"Regulation 854/2004" means Regulation (EC) No. 854/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council laying down specific rules for the organisation of official controls on products of animal origin intended for human consumption(i);

⁽a) OJ No. L 320, 18.11.2006, p. 53, as last amended by Commission Implementing Decision (EU) 2017/1089 (OJ No. L156, 20.6.2017, p. 34)

⁽b) OJ No. L 157, 30.4.2004, p. 33. The revised text of Directive 2004/41/EC is now set out in a Corrigendum (OJ No. L195, 2.6.2004, p. 12)

⁽c) OJ No. L 31, 1.2.2002, p. 1, as last amended by Regulation (EU) 2017/745 of the European Parliament and the Council (OJ No. L 117, 5.5.2017, p. 1)

⁽d) OJ No. L 139, 30.4.2004, p. 1. The revised text of Regulation (EC) No. 852/2004 is now set out in a Corrigendum (OJ No. L226, 25.6.2004, p. 3) which should be read with a further Corrigendum (OJ No. L204, 4.8.2007, p. 26)

⁽e) OJ No. L 87, 31.3.2009, p. 109

⁽f) OJ No. L 68, 12.3.2013, p. 24

⁽g) OJ No. L 304, 21.11.2017, p. 24

⁽h) OJ No. L 139, 30.4.2004, p. 55. The revised text of Regulation (EC) No. 853/2004 is now set out in a Corrigendum (OJ No. L 226, 25.6.2004, p. 22) which should be read with a further Corrigendum (OJ No. L 204, 4.8.2007, p. 26), as last amended by Commission Regulation (EU) 2017/1981 (OJ No. L 285, 1.11, 2017, p. 10)

by Commission Regulation (EU) 2017/1981 (OJ No. L 285, 1.11.2017, p. 10)

(i) OJ No. L 139, 30.4.2004, p. 206. The revised text of Regulation (EC) No. 854/2004 is now set out in a Corrigendum (OJ No. L 226, 25.6.2004, p. 83) which should be read with a further Corrigendum (OJ No. L 204, 4.8.2007, p. 26) as last amended by Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) 2018/981 (OJ No. L 176, 12.7.2018, p. 11)

"Regulation 882/2004" means Regulation (EC) No. 882/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council on official controls performed to ensure the verification of compliance with feed and food law, animal health and animal welfare rules(a);

"Regulation 1688/2005" means Commission Regulation (EC) No. 1688/2005 implementing Regulation (EC) No. 853/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council as regards special guarantees concerning salmonella for consignments to Finland and Sweden of certain meat and eggs(b);

"Regulation 2073/2005" means Commission Regulation (EC) No. 2073/2005 on microbiological criteria for foodstuffs(**c**);

"Regulation 2074/2005" means Commission Regulation (EC) No. 2074/2005 laying down implementing measures for certain products under Regulation (EC) No. 853/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council and for the organisation of official controls under Regulation (EC) No. 854/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council and Regulation (EC) No. 882/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council, derogating from Regulation (EC) No. 852/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council and amending Regulations (EC) No. 853/2004 and (EC) No. 854/2004(d);

"Regulation 1020/2008" means Commission Regulation (EC) No. 1020/2008 amending Annexes II and III to Regulation (EC) No. 853/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council laying down specific hygiene rules for food of animal origin and Regulation (EC) No. 2076/2005 as regards identification marking, raw milk and dairy products, eggs and egg products and certain fishery products(e);

"Regulation 1021/2008" means Commission Regulation (EC) No. 1021/2008 amending Annexes I, II and III to Regulation (EC) No. 854/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council laying down specific rules for the organisation of official controls on products of animal origin intended for human consumption and Regulation (EC) No. 2076/2005 as regards live bivalve molluscs, certain fishery products and staff assisting with official controls in slaughterhouses(f);

"Regulation 219/2009" means Regulation (EC) No. 219/2009 of the European Parliament and of the Council adapting a number of instruments subject to the procedure referred to in Article 251 of the Treaty to Council Decision 1999/468/EC with regard to the regulatory procedure with scrutiny: Adaptation to the regulatory procedure with scrutiny – Part Two(g);

"Regulation 669/2009" means Commission Regulation (EC) No. 669/2009 implementing Regulation (EC) No. 882/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council as regards the increased level of official controls on imports of certain feed and food of non-animal origin and amending Decision 2006/504/EC(h);

"Regulation 739/2011" means Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) No. 739/2011 amending Annex I to Regulation (EC) No 854/2004 of the European Parliament and of the

⁽a) OJ No. L 165, 30.4.2004, p. 1. The revised text of Regulation (EC) No. 882/2004 is now set out in a Corrigendum (OJ No. L 191, 28.5.2004, p. 1) which should be read with a further Corrigendum (OJ No. L 204, 4.8.2007, p. 29), as last amended by Commission Regulation (EU) 2018/455 (OJ No. L 77, 20.3.2018, p. 4)

⁽b) OJ No. L 271, 15.10.2005, p. 17, as last amended by Regulation 1223/2011 (OJ L 314, 29.11.2011, p. 12)

⁽c) OJ No. L 338, 22.12.2005, p. 1, as read with the Corrigenda at OJ No. L 278, 10.10.2006, p. 32 and OJ No. L 283,14.10.2006, p. 62, as last amended by Commission Regulation (EU) 2017/1495 (OJ No. L 218, 24.8.2017, p. 1)

⁽d) OJ No. L 338, 22.12.2005, p. 27, as last amended by Commission Regulation (EU) 2017/1980 (OJ No. L 1.11.2017, p. 8)

⁽e) OJ No. L 277, 18.10.2008, p. 8

⁽f) OJ No. L 277, 18.10.2008, p. 15

⁽g) OJ No. L 87, 31.3.2009, p. 109, as last amended by Directive 2014/28/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council (OJ No. L 96, 29.3.2014, p. 1

⁽h) OJ No. L 194, 25.7.2009, p. 11, as last amended by Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) 2018/941 (OJ L 166, 3.7.2018, p. 7)

Council laying down specific rules for the organisation of official controls on products of animal origin intended for human consumption(a);

"Regulation 809/2011" means Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) No. 809/2011 amending Regulation (EC) No. 2074/2005 as regards documentation accompanying imports of frozen fishery products directly from a freezer vessel(**b**);

"Regulation 880/2011" means Commission Regulation (EU) No. 880/2011 correcting Regulation (EU) No. 208/2011 amending Annex VII to Regulation (EC) No. 882/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council and Commission Regulations (EC) No. 180/2008 and (EC) No. 737/2008 as regards lists and names of EU reference laboratories(c);

"Regulation 1086/2011" means Commission Regulation (EU) No. 1086/2011 amending Annex II to Regulation (EC) No. 2160/2003 of the European Parliament and of the Council and Annex I to Commission Regulation (EC) No. 2073/2005 as regards salmonella in fresh poultry meat(**d**);

"Regulation 1169/2011" means Regulation (EU) No. 1169/2011 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 25 October 2011 on the provision of food information to consumers, amending Regulations (EC) No. 1924/2006 and (EC) No. 1925/2006 of the European Parliament and of the Council, and repealing Commission Directive 87/250/EEC, Council Directive 90/496/EEC, Commission Directive 1999/10/EC, Directive 2000/13/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council, Commission Directives 2002/67/EC and 2008/5/EC and Commission Regulation (EC) No. 608/2004(e);

"Regulation 1223/2011" means Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) No. 1223/2011 amending Regulation (EC) No. 1688/2005 as regards sampling of flocks of origin of eggs and the microbiological examination of such samples and samples of certain meat intended for Finland and Sweden(**f**);

"Regulation 1277/2011" means Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) No. 1277/2011 amending Annex I to Regulation (EC) No. 669/2009 implementing Regulation (EC) No. 882/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council as regards the increased level of official controls on imports of certain feed and food of non-animal origin(g);

"Regulation 16/2012" means Commission Regulation (EU) No. 16/2012 amending Annex II to Regulation (EC) No. 853/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council as regards the requirements concerning frozen food of animal origin intended for human consumption(h);

"Regulation 28/2012" means Commission Regulation (EU) No. 28/2012 laying down requirements for the certification for imports into and transit through the Union of certain composite products and amending Decision 2007/275/EC and Regulation (EC) No. 1162/2009(i);

"Regulation 579/2014" means Commission Regulation (EU) No. 579/2014 granting derogation from certain provisions of Annex II to Regulation (EC) No. 852/2004 of the

⁽a) OJ No. L 196, 28.7.2011, p. 3

⁽b) OJ No. L 207, 12.8.2011, p. 1

⁽c) OJ No. L 228, 3.9.2011, p. 8

⁽d) OJ No. L 281, 28.10.2011, p. 7

⁽e) OJ No. L 304, 22.11.2011, p. 18 as last amended by Regulation (EU) 2015/2283 of the European Parliament and of the Council on novel foods (OJ L 327, 11.12.2015, p. 1)

⁽f) OJ No. L 314, 29.11.2011, p. 12

⁽g) OJ No. L 327, 19.12.2011, p. 42

⁽h) OJ No. L 8, 12.1.2012, p. 29

⁽i) OJ No. L 12, 14.1.2012, p. 1, as last amended by Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) 2017/731 (OJ No. L 108, 26.4.2017, p. 7)

European Parliament and the Council as regards the transport of liquid oils and fats by sea(a);

"Regulation 2015/1375" means Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) 2015/1375 laying down specific rules on official controls for Trichinella in meat(**b**)."

SCHEDULE 2

Regulation 14

SCHEDULE SUBSTITUTED FOR THE SCHEDULE TO THE FISHERY PRODUCTS (OFFICIAL CONTROLS CHARGES) REGULATIONS (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2007

"THE SCHEDULE

Regulation 2(1)

DEFINITIONS OF COMMUNITY LEGISLATION

"Directive 2004/41" means Directive 2004/41/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council repealing certain directives concerning food hygiene and health conditions for the production and placing on the market of certain products of animal origin intended for human consumption and amending Council Directives 89/662/EEC and 92/118/EEC and Council Decision 95/408/EC(c);

"Regulation 2406/96" means Council Regulation (EC) No. 2406/96 laying down common marketing standards for certain fishery products as amended by Commission Regulation (EC) No. 323/97, Council Regulation (EC) No. 2578/2000, Commission Regulation (EC) No. 2495/2001, Commission Regulation (EC) No. 790/2005 and the Act concerning the conditions of accession of the Czech Republic, the Republic of Estonia, the Republic of Cyprus, the Republic of Latvia, the Republic of Lithuania, the Republic of Hungary, the Republic of Malta, the Republic of Poland, the Republic of Slovenia and the Slovak Republic and the adjustments to the Treaties on which the European Union is founded(d);

"Regulation 178/2002" means Regulation (EC) No. 178/2002 of the European Parliament and of the Council laying down the general principles and requirements of food law, establishing the European Food Safety Authority and laying down procedures in matters of food safety as last amended by Regulation (EU) 2017/745(e);

"Regulation 852/2004" means Regulation (EC) No. 852/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council on the hygiene of foodstuffs, as last amended by Regulation (EC) No. 219/2009 of the European Parliament and of the Council(f) as read with Regulation 2073/2005;

"Regulation 853/2004" means Regulation (EC) No. 853/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council laying down specific hygiene rules for food of animal origin, as last

⁽a) OJ No. L 160, 29.5.2014, p. 14, as last amended by Commission Regulation (EU) 2016/238 (OJ No. L 45, 20.2.2016, p. 1)

⁽b) OJ No. L 212, 11.8.2015, p. 7

⁽c) OJ No. L 157, 30.4.2004, p. 33. The revised text of Directive 2004/41/EC is now set out in a Corrigendum (OJ No. L 195, 2.6.2004, p. 12)

⁽**d**) OJ No. L 236, 23.9.2003, p. 444

⁽e) OJ No. L 31, 1.2.2002, p. 1, as last amended by Regulation (EU) 2017/745 of the European Parliament and the Council (OJ No. L 117, 5.5.2017, p. 1)

⁽f) OJ No. L 139, 30.4.2004, p. 1, as last amended by Regulation (EC) No. 219/2009 (OJ No. L 87, 31.3.2009, p. 109), subject to the derogation in Commission Regulation (EU) No. 579/2014 (OJ No. L 160, 29.5.2014, p. 14). The revised text of Regulation (EC) No. 852/2004 is now set out in a Corrigendum (OJ No. L 226, 25.6.2004, p. 3) which should be read with a further Corrigendum (OJ No. L 204, 4.8.2007, p. 26)

amended by Commission Regulation (EU) 2017/1981 as read with Directive 2004/41, Regulation 1688/2005 and Regulation 2074/2005(a);

"Regulation 854/2004" means Regulation (EC) No. 854/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council laying down specific rules for the organisation of official controls on products of animal origin intended for human consumption, as last amended by Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) 2018/981(b);

"Regulation 882/2004" means Regulation (EC) No. 882/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council on official controls performed to ensure the verification of compliance with feed and food law, animal health and animal welfare rules, as last amended by Commission Regulation (EU) 2018/455(c) as read with Regulation 2074/2005 and Regulation 2076/2005;

"Regulation 1688/2005" means Commission Regulation (EC) No. 1688/2005 implementing Regulation (EC) No. 853/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council as regards special guarantees concerning salmonella for consignments to Finland and Sweden of certain meat and eggs, as last amended by Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) No. 1223/2011(d):

"Regulation 2073/2005" means Commission Regulation (EC) No. 2073/2005 on microbiological criteria for foodstuffs as last amended by Commission Regulation (EU) 2017/1495(e);

"Regulation 2074/2005" means Commission Regulation (EC) No. 2074/2005 laying down implementing measures for certain products under Regulation (EC) No. 853/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council and for the organisation of official controls under Regulation (EC) No. 882/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council, derogating from Regulation (EC) No. 852/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council and amending Regulations (EC) No. 853/2004 and (EC) No. 854/2004, as last amended by Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) 2017/1980(f).

"Regulation 2015/1375" means Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) 2015/1375 laying down specific rules on official controls for Trichinella in meat(g)."

20

⁽a) OJ No. L 139, 30.4.2004, p. 55 as last amended by OJ No. L 285, 1.11.2017, p. 10. The revised text of Regulation (EC) No. 853/2004 is now set out in a Corrigendum (OJ No. L 226, 25.6.2004, p. 22) which should be read with a further Corrigendum (OJ No. L 204, 4.8.2007, p. 26)

⁽b) OJ No. L 139, 30.4.2004, p. 206 as last amended by OJ L 176, 12.7.2018, p. 11. The revised text of Regulation (EC) No. 854/2004 is now set out in a Corrigendum (OJ No. L 226, 25.6.2004, p. 83) which should be read with a further Corrigendum (OJ No. L 204, 4.8.2007, p. 26)

⁽c) OJ No. L 165, 30.4.2004, p. 1 as last amended by OJ L 77, 20.3.2018, p. 4. The revised text of Regulation (EC) No. 882/2004 is now set out in a Corrigendum (OJ No. L 191, 28.5.2004, p.1) which should be read with a further Corrigendum (OJ No. L 204, 4.8.2007, p. 29)

⁽d) OJ No. L 271, 15.10.2005, p. 17 as last amended by OJ No. L 314, 29.11.2011, p. 12

⁽e) OJ No. L 338, 22.12.2005, p. 1, as last amended by OJ No. L 218, 24.8.2017, p. 1 and as read with the Corrigenda at OJ No. L 278, 10.10.2006, p. 32 and OJ No. L 283, 14.10.2006, p. 62

⁽f) OJ L 338, 22.12.2005, p. 27 as last amended by OJ L 285, 1.11.2017, p. 8

⁽g) OJ No. L 212, 11.8.2015, p. 7

SCHEDULE SUBSTITUTED FOR SCHEDULE 1 TO OFFICIAL FEED AND FOOD CONTROLS REGULATIONS (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2009

"SCHEDULE 1

Regulations 2(1)

DEFINITIONS OF EU LEGISLATION

"Directive 2004/41" means Directive 2004/41/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council repealing certain directives concerning food hygiene and health conditions for the production and placing on the market of certain products of animal origin intended for human consumption and amending Council Directives 89/662/EEC and 92/118/EEC and Council Decision 95/408/EC(a);

"Regulation 999/2001" means Regulation (EC) No. 999/2001 of the European Parliament and of the Council laying down rules for the prevention, control and eradication of certain transmissible spongiform encephalopathies(**b**);

"Regulation 178/2002" means Regulation (EC) No. 178/2002 of the European Parliament and of the Council laying down the general principles and requirements of food law, establishing the European Food Safety Authority and laying down procedures in matters of food safety(c);

"Regulation 852/2004" means Regulation (EC) No. 852/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council on the hygiene of foodstuffs(**d**) as read with Regulation 2073/2005;

"Regulation 853/2004" means Regulation (EC) No. 853/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council laying down specific hygiene rules for food of animal origin(e);

"Regulation 882/2004" means Regulation (EC) No. 882/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council on official controls performed to ensure the verification of compliance with feed and food law, animal health and animal welfare rules(**f**);

"Regulation 1688/2005" means Commission Regulation (EC) No. 1688/2005 implementing Regulation (EC) No. 853/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council as regards

⁽a) OJ No. L 157, 30.4.2004, p. 33. The revised text of Directive 2004/41/EC is now set out in a Corrigendum (OJ No. L 195, 2.6.2004, p. 12)

⁽b) OJ No. L 147, 31.5.2001, p. 1, as last amended by Commission Regulation (EU) No. 2018/969 (OJ No. L 174, 10.7.2018, p. 12)

⁽c) OJ No. L 31, 1.2.2002 p. 1, as last amended by Regulation (EU) 2017/745 of the European Parliament and of the Council (OJ No. L 117, 5.5.2017, p. 1)

⁽d) OJ No. L 139, 30.4.2004, p. 1, as last amended by Regulation (EC) No. 219/2009 (OJ No. L 87, 31.3.2009, p. 109), subject to the derogation in Commission Regulation (EU) No. 579/2014 (OJ No. L 160, 29.5.2014, p. 14). The revised text of Regulation (EC) No. 852/2004 is now set out in a Corrigendum (OJ No. L 226, 25.6.2004, p. 3) which should be read with a further Corrigendum (OJ No. L 204, 4.8.2007, p. 26). Regulation (EC) No. 852/2004 was last amended by Regulation (EC) No. 219/2009 of the European Parliament and of the Council adapting a number of instruments subject to the procedure referred to in Article 251 of the Treaty to Council Decision 1999/468/EC with regard to the regulatory procedure with scrutiny: Adaptation to the regulatory procedure with scrutiny — Part Two (OJ No. L 87, 31.3.2009, p. 109)
(e) OJ No. L 139, 30.4.2004, p. 55, as last amended by Commission Regulation (EU) No. 2017/1981 (OJ No. L 285, 1.11.2017,

⁽e) OJ No. L 139, 30.4.2004, p. 55, as last amended by Commission Regulation (EU) No. 2017/1981 (OJ No. L 285, 1.11.2017, p. 10). The revised text of Regulation (EC) No. 853/2004 is now set out in a Corrigendum (OJ No. L 226, 25.6.2004, p. 22) which should be read with a further Corrigendum (OJ No. L 204, 4.8.2007, p. 26)

⁽f) OJ No. L 165, 30.4.2004, p. 1 as last amended by Commission Regulation (EU) No. 2018/455 (OJ No. L 77, 20.3.2018, p. 4). The revised text of Regulation (EC) No. 882/2004 is now set out in a Corrigendum (OJ No. L 191, 28.5.2004, p. 1) which should be read with a further Corrigendum (OJ No. L 204, 4.8.2007, p. 29). Regulation (EC) No. 882/2004 was last amended by Commission Regulation (EC) No. 1029/2008 amending Regulation (EC) No. 882/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council to update a reference to certain European Standards (OJ No. L 278, 21.10.2008, p. 6)

special guarantees concerning salmonella for consignments to Finland and Sweden of certain meat and eggs(a);

"Regulation 2073/2005" means Commission Regulation (EC) No. 2073/2005 on microbiological criteria for foodstuffs(**b**);

"Regulation 2074/2005" means Commission Regulation (EC) No. 2074/2005 laying down implementing measures for certain products under Regulation (EC) No. 853/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council and for the organisation of official controls under Regulation (EC) No. 854/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council and Regulation (EC) No. 882/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council, derogating from Regulation (EC) No. 852/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council and amending Regulations (EC) No. 853/2004 and (EC) No. 854/2004(c);

"Regulation 1020/2008" means Commission Regulation (EC) No. 1020/2008 amending Annexes II and III to Regulation (EC) No. 853/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council laying down specific hygiene rules for food of animal origin and Regulation (EC) No. 2076/2005 as regards identification marking, raw milk and dairy products, eggs and egg products and certain fishery products(d);

"Regulation 669/2009" means Commission Regulation (EC) No. 669//2009 implementing Regulation (EC) No. 882/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council as regards the increased level of official controls on imports of certain feed and food of non-animal origin and amending Decision 2006/504/EC(e);

"Regulation 211/2013" means Commission Regulation (EU) No. 211/2013 on certification requirements for imports into the Union of sprouts and seeds intended for the production of sprouts(**f**); and

"Regulation 2015/1375" means Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) No. 2015/1375 of the European Parliament and of the Council laying down specific rules on official controls for Trichinella in meat(g)."

22

⁽a) OJ No. L 271, 15.10.2005, p. 17, as last amended by Commission Regulation (EU) No. 1223/2011 (OJ No. L 314, 29.11.2011, p. 12)

⁽b) OJ No. L 338, 22.12.2005, p. 1, as last amended by Commission Regulation (EU) No. 2017/1495 (OJ No. L 218, 24.8.2017, p. 1) and as read with the Corrigenda at OJ No. L 278, 10.10.2006, p. 32 and OJ No. L 283, 14.10.2006, p. 62. Regulation (EC) 2073/2005 was amended by Commission Regulation (EC) No. 1441/2007 amending Regulation (EC) No. 2073/2005 on microbiological criteria for foodstuffs (OJ No. L 322, 7.12.2007, p. 12)

⁽c) OJ No. L 338, 22.12.2005, p. 27, as last amended by Commission Regulation (EC) No. 2017/1980 (OJ No. L 285, 1.11.2017, p. 8)

⁽d) OJ L 277, 18.10.2008, p. 8

⁽e) OJ No. L 194, 25.7.2009, p. 11, as last amended by Commission Regulation (EU) No. 2018/941 (OJ No. L 166, 3.7.2018, p. 7)

⁽f) OJ L 68, 12.3.2013, p.26, as last amended by Commission Regulation (EU) No. 704/2014 (OJ No. L186, 26.6.2014, p.49)

⁽g) OJ No. L212, 11.8.2015, p.7

SCHEDULE SUBSTITUTED FOR SCHEDULE 3 TO THE FOOD IRRADIATION REGULATIONS (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2009

"SCHEDULE 3 Regulations 3(1) and 5(1)(b)(i)

LIST OF APPROVED FACILITIES IN MEMBER STATES

Official reference number	Name and address	
2110/91/0004	Sterigenics SA	
	Zoning Industriel	
	6220 Fleurus	
	Belgium	
01/23.05.2008	Bulgamma, Sopharma Ltd	
	Iliensko Shosse 16	
	Sofia	
	Bulgaria	
2/26.10.2010	GITAVA Ltd 'Kalina'	
	Town of Stamboliyski	
	Hristo Botev str.	
	Municipality Stamboliyski	
	Plovdiv district	
	Bulgaria	
IR-02-CZ	Bioster a.s.	
	Tejny 621	
	664 71 Veverská Bítýška	
	Czech Republic	
SN 01	Synergy Health Radeberg GmbH	
	Juri—Gagarin Strasse 15	
	01454 Radeberg	
	Germany	
BY FS 01/2001	Synergy Health Allershausen GmbH	
	Kesselbodenstrasse 7	
	85391 Allershausen	
	Germany	
NRW-GM 01 and NRW-GM 02	BGS Beta-Gamma-Service GmbH & Co. KG	
	Fritz-Kotz-Str.16	
	51674 Wiehl	
	Germany	
D-BW-X-01	Beta-Gamma-Service GmbH & Co. KG	
	John-Deere-Strasse 3	
	76646 Bruchsal	
	Germany	
2835	Scandinavian Clinics Estonia OÜ	
2000	Kurvi tee 406a,	
	Alliku kula,	
	76403 Saue vald,	
	Harjumaa	
	Estonia	
5.00001/CH		
5.00001/CU	Ionmed Esterilización, SA	

	G/D :
	C/Rocinante, Parc.50
	(Polg. Ind. Tarancón)
	16400 Tarancón (Cuenca)
	Spain
5.00002/B	Aerogamma S.L.
	Carretera Granollers a Cardeneu, Km. 3.5
	08520 Les Franqueses del Vallés (Barcelona)
	Spain
5.00005/SO	Mevion Technology, S.L.
	Avda. De España, 1
	Pol. Industrial Emiliano Revilla,
	42110 Ólvega (Soria)
	Spain
13055 F	Synergy Health
150551	Rue Jean Queillau Marché des Arnavaux
	13014 Marseille Cedex 14
	France
72 264 F	Ionisos SA
72 204 I	Zone industrielle de l'Aubrée
	72300 Sablé-sur-Sarthe
05 102 F	France
85 182 F	Ionisos SA
	Zone industrielle Montifaud
	85700 Pouzauges
	France
01 142 F	Ionisos SA
	Zone Industrielle les Chartinières
	01120 Dagneux
	France
10 093 F	Ionisos SA
	Zone Industrielle
	10500 Chaumesnil
	France
541-02/03-IRB16-1	Institut Ruder Bošković,
	Bijenička 54,
	10 000 Zagreb,
	Croatia
EU-AIF-04-2002	AGROSTER Besugárzó Zártkörűen Működő
	Részvénytársaság
	Budapest
	Jászberényi út 5
	1106
	Hungary
RAD 1/04 IT	Gammarad Italia SPA
	Via Marzabotto 4
	Minerbio (BO)
	Italy
GZB/VVB-991393 Ede	Synergy Health
	Morsestraat 3
	6716AH Ede
	Netherlands
GZB/VVB-991393 Etten-Leur	Synergy Health
GEDITTO //13/3 DUCH-LOUI	Socraring actract 2

Soevereinsestraat 2

4879 NN Etten-Leur

Netherlands

GIS-HZ-4434-W.-2/MR/03 Institute of Applied Radiation Chemistry

Technical University of Lodz

15 Wróblewskiego Str. 39-590 Łódź

Poland

GIS-HZ-4434-W.-3/MR/03 Institute of Nuclear Chemistry and Technology

16 Dorodna Str. 03-195 Warsaw

Poland

RG016/2008 Multipurpose Irradiation Facility

IRASM Technological Irradiations Department

Horia Hulubei

National Institute for Research and Development of Physics and Nuclear

Engineering

Atomiștilor Str. No. 407

PO Box MG-6

Măgurele. Ilfov County

Romania

EW/04 Synergy Health

Moray Road

Elgin Industrial Estate

Swindon Wiltshire SN2 8XS

United Kingdom"

SCHEDULE 5

Regulation 22(3)

SCHEDULE SUBSTITUTED FOR SCHEDULE 4 TO THE FOOD IRRADIATION REGULATIONS (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2009

"SCHEDULE 4

Regulation 5(1) and 5(1)(b)(i)

LIST OF FACILITIES IN COUNTRIES OUTSIDE THE EUROPEAN UNION

Name and address
HEPRO Cape (Pty) Ltd
6 Ferrule Avenue
Montague Gardens
Milnerton 7441
Western Cape
Republic of South Africa
Gammaster South Africa (Pty) Ltd
PO Box 3219
5 Waterpas Street
Isando Extension 3

EU-AIF 03-2002	Kempton Park 1620 Johannesburg Republic of South Africa Gamwave (Pty) Ltd PO Box 26406 Isipingo Beach Durban 4115 Kwazulu-Natal
EU-AIF 05-2004	Republic of South Africa Gamma-Pak As Yünsa Yolu N: 4 0SB Cerkezköy/TEKIRDAG TR-59500
EU-AIF 06-2004	Turkey Studer Agg Werk Hard Hogenweidstrasse 2 Däniken CH-4658
EU-AIF 07-2006	Switzerland Thai Irradiation Centre Thailand Institute of Nuclear Technology (Public Organisation) 37 Moo 3, TECHNOPOLIS Klong 5, Klong Luang
EU-AIF 08-2006	Pathumthani 12120 Thailand Synergy Health (Thailand) Ltd 700/465 Amata Nakorn Industrial Moo 7, Tambon Donhuaroh, Amphur Muang,
EU-AIF 09-2010	Chonburi 20000 Thailand Board of Radiation and Isotope Technology Department of Atomic Energy BRIT/BARC Vashi Complex Sector 20, Vashi Navi Mumbai – 400 705 (Maharashtra)
EU-AIF 10-2010	India Board of Radiation and Isotope Technology ISOMED Bhabha Atomic Research Centre South Site Gate, Refinery Road Next to TATA Power Station, Trombay Mumbai – 400 085 (Maharashtra) India
EU-AIF 11-2010	Microtrol Sterilisation Services Pvt. Ltd Plot No. 14 Bommasandra- Jigani Link Road Industrial Area KIADB, Off Hosur Road Hennagarra Post Bengalooru – 562 106 (Karnataka) India"

SCHEDULE SUBSTITUTED FOR SCHEDULE 1 TO MEAT (OFFICIAL FEED CONTROLS CHARGES) REGULATIONS (NORTHERN IRELAND) 2009

"SCHEDULE 1

Regulations 2

DEFINITIONS OF COMMUNITY LEGISLATION

"Directive 2004/41" means Directive 2004/41/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council repealing certain Directives concerning food hygiene and health conditions for the production and placing on the market of certain products of animal origin intended for human consumption and amending Council Directives 89/662/EEC and 92/118/EEC and Council Decision 95/408/EC(a);

"Regulation 178/2002" means Regulation (EC) No. 178/2002 of the European Parliament and of the Council laying down the general principles and requirements of food law, establishing the European Food Safety Authority and laying down procedures in matters of food safety(**b**);

"Regulation 852/2004" means Regulation (EC) No. 852/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council on the hygiene of foodstuffs(c);

"Regulation 853/2004" means Regulation (EC) No. 853/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council laying down specific hygiene rules for food of animal origin(**d**) as read with Directive 2004/41, Regulation 1688/2005 and Regulation 2074/2005;

"Regulation 854/2004" means Regulation (EC) No. 854/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council laying down specific rules for the organisation of official controls on products of animal origin intended for human consumption(e);

"Regulation 882/2004" means Regulation (EC) No. 882/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council on official controls performed to ensure the verification of compliance with feed and food law, animal health and animal welfare rules(\mathbf{f});

"Regulation 1688/2005" means Commission Regulation (EC) No. 1688/2005 implementing Regulation (EC) No. 853/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council as regards special guarantees concerning salmonella for consignments to Finland and Sweden of certain meat and eggs(g);

⁽a) OJ No. L 157, 30.4.2004, p. 33. The revised text of Directive 2004/41/EC is now set out in a Corrigendum (OJ No. L 195, 2.6.2004, p. 12)

⁽b) OJ No. L 189, 27.6.2014, p. 1, as last amended by Regulation (EU) No. 2017/745 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 5 April 2017 on medical devices, amending Directive 2001/83/EC, Regulation (EC) No. 178/2002 and Regulation (EC) No. 1223/2009 and repealing Council Directives 90/385/EEC and 93/42/EEC (OJ No. L 117, 5.5.2017, p. 1)

⁽c) OJ No. L 139, 30.4.2004, p. 1, as read with Regulation 2073/2005 and as last amended by Regulation (EC) No. 219/2009 (OJ No. L 87, 31.3.2009, p. 109). The revised text of Regulation (EC) No. 852/2004 is now set out in a Corrigendum (OJ No. L 226, 25.6.2004, p. 3) which should be read with a further Corrigendum (OJ No. L 204, 4.8.2007, p. 26). Regulation (EC) No. 852/2004 has been amended by Commission Regulation (EC) No. 1019/2008 amending Annex II to Regulation (EC) No. 852/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council on the hygiene of foodstuffs (OJ No. L277, 18.10.2008, p. 7)

⁽d) OJ No. L 139, 30.4.2004, p. 55, as last amended by Commission Regulation (EU) No. 2017/1981 (OJ No. L 285, 1.11.2017, p. 10). The revised text of Regulation (EC) No. 853/2004 is now set out in a Corrigendum (OJ No. L 226, 25.6.2004, p. 22) which should be read with a further Corrigendum (OJ No. L 204, 4.8.2007, p. 26)

⁽e) OJ No. L 139, 30.4.2004, p. 206, as read with Directive 2004/41, Regulation 2074/2005, Regulation 2015/1375; and as last amended by Commission Regulation (EU) No. 2015/2285 (OJ No. L 323, 9.12.2015, p. 2)

⁽f) OJ No. L 165, 30.4.2004, p. 1, as read with Regulation 2074/2005 and as last amended by Commission Regulation (EU) No. 2018/455 (OJ No. L 160, 29.5.2014, p. 12)

⁽g) OJ No. L 271, 15.10.2005, p. 17, as last amended by Regulation 1223/2011 (OJ L 314, 29.11.2011, p. 12)

"Regulation 2073/2005" means Commission Regulation (EC) No. 2073/2005 on microbiological criteria for foodstuffs(a);

"Regulation 2074/2005" means Commission Regulation (EC) No. 2074/2005 laying down implementing measures for certain products under Regulation (EC) No. 853/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council and for the organisation of official controls under Regulation (EC) No. 854/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council and Regulation (EC) No. 882/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council, derogating from Regulation (EC) No. 852/2004 of the European Parliament and of the Council and amending Regulations (EC) No. 853/2004 and (EC) No. 854/2004(b); and

"Regulation 2015/1375" means Commission Implementing Regulation (EC) No. 2015/1375 laying down specific rules on official controls for Trichinella in meat(c)."

SCHEDULE 7

Regulation 37

Revocations

Title	Year and Number
The Food Premises (Registration) (Amendment) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 1993	SR. 1993 No. 423
The Dairy Products (Hygiene) (Amendment) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 1996	S.R. 1996 No. 287
The Fresh Meat (Beef Controls) (Amendment) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 1996	S.R. 1996 No. 506
The Miscellaneous Food Additives (Amendment) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 1997	S.R. 1997 No. 340
The Food Premises (Registration) (Amendment) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 1997	S.R. 1997 No. 227
The Food Safety (Fishery Products and Live Shellfish) (Hygiene) (Amendment) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 1999	S.R. 1999 No. 83
The Meat Products (Hygiene) (Amendment) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 1999	S.R. 1999 No. 193
The Food Safety (Fishery Products and Live Shellfish) (Hygiene) (Amendment No. 2) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 1999	S.R. 1999 No. 285
The Meat (Enhanced Enforcement Powers) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2000	S.R. 2000 No. 191
The Meat (Disease Control) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2000	S.R. 2000 No. 287
The Fresh Meat (Beef Controls) (Amendment) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2001	S.R. 2001 No. 155
The Poultry Meat, Farmed Game Bird Meat and	S.R. 2001 No. 429

⁽a) OJ No. L 338, 22.12.2005, as last amended by Commission Regulation (EU) No. 2017/1495 (OJ No. L 218, 24.8.2017, p. 1)

OJ No. L 338, 22.12.2005, p. 27, as last amended by Commission Regulation (EU) No. 2016/759(OJ No. L 126, 14.5.2016, p. 13)

⁽c) OJ No. L 17, 26.1.2016, p. 23

Rabbit Meat (Hygiene and Inspection) (Amendment) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2001	
The Meat (Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Point) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2002	S.R. 2002 No. 217
The Infant Formula and Follow-on Formula (Amendment) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2003	S.R. 2003 No. 529
The Food (Emergency Control) (Miscellaneous Amendments) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2004	S.R. 2004 No. 205
The Food (Peanuts from China) (Emergency Control) (Amendment) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2003	S.R. 2003 No. 361
The Food (Figs, Hazelnuts and Pistachios from Turkey) (Emergency Control No. 2) (Amendment) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2003	S.R. 2003 No. 363
The Food (Brazil Nuts) (Emergency Control) (Amendment) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2003	S.R. 2003 No. 505
The Food (Pistachios from Iran) (Emergency Control) (Amendment) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2005	S.R. 2005 No. 30
The Sweeteners in Food (Amendment) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2005	S.R. 2005 No. 18
The Poultry Meat, Farmed Game Bird Meat and Rabbit Meat (Hygiene and Inspection) (Amendment) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2005	S.R. 2005 No. 35
The Food Safety (General Food Hygiene) (Amendment) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2005	S.R. 2005 No. 408
The Flavourings in Food Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2010	S.R. 2010 No. 414

EXPLANATORY NOTE

(This note is not part of the Regulations)

These Regulations make amendments to a number of pieces of secondary legislation relating to food and feed.

Regulation 13 amends the Food Hygiene Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2006 (S.R. 2006 No. 3) to amend the definition of Regulation (EC) 852/2004 on the hygiene of foodstuffs (OJ No L 139, 30.4.2004, p. 1) so as to require that Regulation to be read with new Commission Regulation (EU) No 2017/2158 establishing mitigation measures and benchmark levels for the reduction of the presence of acrylamide in food (OJ No L 304, 21.11.2017, p. 24).

Regulation 27 amends the Fruit Juices and Fruit Nectars Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2013 (S.R. 2013 No. 253) to implement Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) No 1040/2014 amending Council Directive 2001/112/EC relating to fruit juices and certain similar products intended for human consumption to adapt its Annex I to technical progress (OJ No L 288, 2.10.2014, p. 1). This allows plant proteins from wheat, peas and potatoes to be used for the clarification of products to which the Fruit Juices and Fruit Nectars Regulations (Northern Ireland 2013 apply.

These Regulations make other miscellaneous minor amendments to legislation relating to food and feed, in particular amending out of date references to domestic legislation and to EU instruments.

© Crown copyright 2019

Printed and published in the UK by The Stationery Office Limited under the authority and superintendence of Jeff James, Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office being the Government Printer for Northern Ireland and the Officer appointed to print Acts of the Northern Ireland Assembly.

£6.90

NI201901161014 01/2019 19585

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/id/nisr/2019/5

